
CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
Small Courtroom, Courthouse 

June 6, 2024   9:30 a.m. 
***PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES*** 

  
Call to Order  
Pledge of Allegiance  
Roll Call  
Public Comments  

Consent Agenda   
1. Approval of the May 16th Meeting Minutes  
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation  
3. Approval of Committee on Claims  

Tabled Items  

Department Reports  
Animal Control  
Assessor  

  Circuit Clerk  
 County Clerk & Recorder    

Emergency Management  
GIS  
Highway  
  1.  Monthly Report 

 Health Department  
Probation  
Sheriff  

  States Attorney  
   Transit 
  1. Monthly Report 

Treasurer  
Zoning  
Zoning Board of Appeals  

Affiliate Reports  
  Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – Mrs. Bickelhaupt  
  Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – Mr. Flikkema      

Community Mental Health Board – Mrs. Bickelhaupt  
Emergency Telephone System Board – Mr. Rieck  
Health Board – Mr. Iske  

 Hotel/Motel – Ms. Jacobs    
Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone – Mr. Payette 
Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency – Mr. Flikkema  



LRA – Ms. Jacobs  
NWILED – Ms. Jacobs  
Senior Services Board – Mr. Soldat  
Tri-County Opportunities Council – Mr.  Preston 
United County Council of Illinois – Mr. Payette  

1. Monthly Report
Veterans Assistance Commission – Ms. Jacobs  
Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone - Mr. Payette 

Committee Reports 
Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee – Mr. Iske 
Highway/EOC Building Renovation – Mr. Flikkema 
Ad Hoc Transit Garage Committee – Mr. Flikkema  

Old Business 

New Business 
1. Illinois Extension Report – Karla Belzer.
2. Approval of Carroll County Election Judges for two year terms.
3. Approval of the 2025 Holiday Schedule.
 4. Approval of Raffle License for the Thomson American Legion Post 1025.
5. Approval of Resolution for Newly Elected/Appointed Officials Salaries.
6. Approval of Resolution amending Chapter 745 – Guest Home License.
7. Approval of Mid America Basement Bid of $2,005 for Radon Mitigation/Sump
Pump for Highway Department.
8. Approval of Bridge Inspection Engineering Agreement with Willet Hofmann
and Associates.
9. Approval of Resolution to Appropriate $48,300 for county-wide bridge
Inspections from County Bridge Aid Fund.
10. Approval of Resolution to Appropriate $100,000 for culvert replacement
project Section 22-13707-00-BR from County Bridge Fund.
11. Approval of Resolution to Appropriate $450,000 for culvert replacement
project Section 22-17235-00-BR from County Bridge Fund.
12. Approval of Ordinance Authorizing Execution of the Illinois Public Works
Mutual Aid Network Agreement.

Executive Session 

Chairman Report  
1. Illinois Finance Authority C-PACE Program
2. UCCI/IDOL Overtime & Paid Leave Act

Appointments  

Adjournment  

Next County Board Meeting – June 20, 2024 9:30 a.m. 



CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

301 N. MAIN ST., MT. CARROLL, IL IN SMALL COURTROOM 

MAY 16, 2024 AT 9:30 A.M. 

    

Chair Payette called the Board meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.  

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Mr. Preston, Mr. Flikkema, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske, Mr. Rieck, Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt and Mr. Soldat present.  Mr. Vandermyde was absent.  

Public Comments – Deb West-Peterson of Mt. Carroll, IL read a statement on her concerns 
about Sanctuary polices and squatter’s rights.  Chair Payette thanked her for her time and 
asked her to please leave her statement and phone number.   

Chair Payette presented the consent agenda for approval.  
1. Approval of the May 2, 2024 Board Meeting minutes 
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation 
3. Approval of Committee on Claims 

 
Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Preston to approve the consent agenda. Roll call shows 
Mr. Iske, Mr. Flikkema, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Payette, Mrs. Bickelhaupt and Mr. 
Preston all voting aye. Motion carried.  
 
Tabled Items-None  

 
Animal Control- Animal Control Officer Lisa Ashby reported that four dogs are at the Animal 
Control Facility at this time.   

Assessor- Deputy Assessor Koltin Dimmick was present advised no report.  

Circuit Clerk- Circuit Clerk Patty Hiher was not present.  

County Clerk- County Clerk Amy Buss was present advised no report.  

Emergency Management- Emergency Management Director Jim Klinefelter reported that with 
the rain, renovation at the Highway/EOC building has been delayed.  

He reported that he has been helping JoDaviess County with EMA duties.   

GIS- Deputy Assessor Dimmick was present advised no report. 

Highway – A monthly report was submitted. 



County Engineer Sara Renkes requested permission to relist the #68 dump truck and Bomag   
that was not sold utilizing GovDeals, placing a poster listing in the courthouse and highway 
department and listing on the County website.  It was the consensus of the Board for her to 
relist the surplus.  

She reported she attended a County Engineer Statewide Conference last week.  At the 
conference, there was discussion on Illinois Public Work Mutual Aid Network and how it would 
benefit the County if we used them in case of natural or man-made emergencies or disasters.  

She will be meeting with our Township Road Commissioners at the end of this month.   

Health Department – Dawn Holland was not present.    

Probation- Chief Probation Managing Office Marcie Arno was present advised no report.  

Sheriff & Property- Sheriff Ryan Kloepping informed the Board that his department has 
received a $25,000 grant for the jail necessities. Some of the items purchased include a clothes 
dryer, floor scrubber and mattresses.   

He reported that the 18 body cams have been delivered and training will take place soon.  

He has hired Ryan Lambert as his new Chief Deputy.  Chief Deputy Lambert had been working 
for the Illinois State Police before taking this position. He also informed the Board that he has a 
Deputy and a Jailer both graduating soon from the academy.  The Deputy that graduated 
previously is now a full-time road deputy.   

State’s Attorney – State’s Attorney Aaron Kaney was present advised no report.  

Transit – PCOM Mary Maszk was present advised no report.  

Treasurer – County Treasurer Lydia Hutchcraft reported that tax bills will be mailed next week. 

She and County Administrator Jachnicki met with ClearGov on Monday.  She will be sending 
them data from 2016 through May of 2024. Software training will start with herself and the 
County Administrator in about four weeks.   

Zoning – Zoning Officer Jaicee Buckner reported she will be going to FEMA training next week.  
She has been busy working on updating several ordinances.  County Board member William 
Iske asked if she could submit a progress report on the zoning complaints in the future.  She 
was happy to oblige and will have a report at future Board meetings.  

Zoning Board of Appeals – Zoning officer Buckner informed the Board that Chapter 700 Zoning 
Ordinance will go to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a recommendation before the Board votes 
on it.  

 

 



Affiliate Reports 

Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – No report. 

Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – No report.    

Community Mental Health Board – No report. 

Emergency Telephone System Board - No report. 

Health Board – No report. 

Hotel/Motel – No report.  

Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone - No report. 

Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency – No report.  

LRA- No report.  

NWILED- No report. 

Senior Services Board - No report 

Tri-County Opportunities Council – A monthly report was submitted.  

United County Council of Illinois- No report  

Veterans Assistance Commission – No report 

Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone – No report  

Committee Reports 

Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee- No report since there is a presentation later.  

Highway/EOC Building Renovation-Mr. Flikkema reported the contractor has been delayed due 
to the weather.   

Ad Hoc Transit Garage Committee- Mr. Flikkema reported they had a meeting this morning.  
There will be more discussion under Old Business.   

Old Business-  

Chair Payette informed the Board that at this time there will be no action on Approval of Transit 
Contract between Carroll County and Carroll County Senior Servies.   

Chair Payette introduced Matt Bickel from Wold Architects & Engineers.  Mr. Bickel presented a 
power point that reviewed study objectives, existing jail conditions, inmate housing projections, 
space needs analysis, and an overview of all 7 options.  

 



The seven (7) options are: 

1. Renovate existing jail  
2. Renovate existing jail with Minimal Expansion 
3. Renovate existing jail with Maximum Expansion (1-Story) 
4. Renovate existing jail with Maximum Expansion 2-story) 
5. Construct new jail 
6. Construct new jail and courthouse 
7. House inmates out of county  

After presentation, Mr. Bickel was asked questions and there was discussion.  After discussion,  
Mr. Iske made a motion on behalf of the Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee “We the Ad Hoc 
Inmate Housing Committee request the board approval to engage an architectural professional 
firm to perform space plan design options that satisfy safety concerns, state requirements, and 
DOC approval utilizing the presented Wold options 2 and 3 as a baseline. Second by Ms. Jacobs. 
Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Preston, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Iske, Mr. 
Flikkema and Ms. Jacobs all voting aye.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for discussion and possible Approval of Architect for Transit garage.  
After discussion, it was decided to submit selected architect to IDOT for approval.   

New Business-  

Chair Payette presented for Approval of the Local Public Agency Formal Contract with America’s 
Parking Remarking utilizing MFT funds for pavement stripping in the amount of $47,787.99.  
Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Preston to approve.  Roll call shows Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Ms. 
Jacobs, Mr. Preston, Mr. Iske, Mr. Payette, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Flikkema and Mr. Soldat all voting 
aye.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval a Raffle License for Savanna Moose Club.  Motion by Ms. 
Jacobs, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt to approve this license.  Motion carried.  

Chair Payette presented for Discussion of Amending Chapter 700 Zoning Ordinance.  Zoning 
Officer Jaicee Buckner noted only changes at this time will have to do with Guest Homes. 

Chair Payette presented for Discussion of Amending Chapter 745 Guest Home License 
Ordinance.  Zoning Officer Buckner informed the Board the Chapter needs to be amended so 
businesses are not double taxed.  It has been brought to her and County Treasurer Hutchcraft’s 
attention that some businesses have been taxed by the County and the Municipality. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of Resolution for Transportation Fund.  This resolution 
will make Mary Maszk ,Program Compliance Oversight Monitor the authorized user and 
removing former County Administrator Mike Doty.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Iske 
to approve.  Motion carried. 



Chair Payette presented for Approval of Letter of Support for Upper Mississippi River 
International Port District EPA Clean Ports Planning Grants.  The letter was included in the 
Board packet for the Board to review.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Preston to approve 
the Letter of Support.  Motion carried. 

Chairman Reports 

Chair Payette presented a letter he has drafted to send to U.S. Senator Tammy Duckworth to 
oppose the Congressional Review Act (CRA) joint resolution of disapproval of the Obligation 
Interim Final Rule (IFR) published by the U.S. Department of Treasury in November 2023.  It was 
consensus of the Board that the letter should be sent to U.S. Senator Duckworth.  

County Administrator Robert Jachnicki updated the Board that he secured a 3-year agreement 
with ClearGov for budget software for $10,000 per year thru November 30, 2027.  He also 
reported that he will be attending a UCCI Executive membership meeting on May 20th in 
Springfield.  

Appointments-  

Chair Payette presented for Approval the appointment of Patty Hughes (Republican affiliation) 
to the Board of Review for a two-year term June 2024 thru May 2026.  Motion by Mr. Preston, 
second by Ms. Jacobs to approve.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval to the Jo Daviess County Joint Solid Waste-reappointment 
of both Chris Flikkema and Les Guenzler for an initial one-year term June 2024 thru May 2025 
to stager appointments, and reappointments of both Craig Dimmick and Ken Sandy for a three-
year term June 2024 thru May 2027. Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Preston to approve.  
Motion carried.  

Motion by Mr. Iske, second by Mr. Preston to adjourn at 11: 02 a.m.  Motion carried.  

Submitted by Amy R. Buss, County Clerk and Recorder 

 



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank = 

Batch = BPIV

Due Date = 5/20/2024

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

07 ELECTIONSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

6432 5/20/2024 VOTING SYSTEM LEASE / ELECTION SERVICE AGREEMENT

$17,761.00LIBERTY SYSTEMS, LLC 01107005182 SOFTWARE LEASE     640393

$17,761.00Subtotal for Department: 07 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,761.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 5/20/2024 9:53:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)

Bills Paid In Vacation



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = BPIV

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

07 ELECTIONSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

130631 5/20/2024 CO CLERK / MONITOR

$369.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01107005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1091

$369.00Subtotal for Department: 07 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $369.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 5/20/2024 10:37:18 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = BPIV

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 040 COUNTY MOTEL/HOTEL TA

X FUND

2877 5/20/2024 HOTEL-MOTEL BILLBOARD

$772.13BP GRAPHIX 04000005154 TOURISM/PROMOTIONS474

$772.13Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 040 : $772.13

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 5/20/2024 1:34:26 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = 

Due Date = 5/24/2024

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

02 SUPPLIES AND RENTALSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

0711.10536 5/24/2024 TREASURER / SOFTWARE

$6,127.42DEVNET INC 01102006199 TRANSFER1335

4380437, 4391775 5/24/2024 PRE EMPLOYMENT EXAMS

$265.00PHYSICIANS IMMEDIATE CARE 01102005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640339

INV609698 5/24/2024 COPY PAPER FOR COURTHOUSE

$1,830.00STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01102005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG4192

$8,222.42Subtotal for Department: 02 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 1 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

03 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

3234916 5/24/2024 CO CLERK

$15.66IMPACT NETWORKING LLC 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN3264

$15.66Subtotal for Department: 03 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 2 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

07 ELECTIONSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

6383 5/24/2024 CO CLERK / BALLOT STOCK & TONER

$290.00LIBERTY SYSTEMS, LLC 01107005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640393

$290.00Subtotal for Department: 07 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 3 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

12 COUNTY TREASURERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

071115801 5/24/2024 CARROLL COUNTY COLLECTOR / DEPOSIT TICKETS

$207.01FIRST STATE BANK OF SHANNON- 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1667

38463582 5/24/2024 TREASURER

$281.93QUILL CORPORATION 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3540

38608061 5/24/2024 TREASURER

$119.96QUILL CORPORATION 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3540

$608.90Subtotal for Department: 12 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 4 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

13 COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

5.22.24 5/24/2024 FIDLAR CONFERENCE / MILEAGE

$81.07KENDRA S. STRAUCH 01113005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES640124

$81.07Subtotal for Department: 13 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 5 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

22 EMERGENCY SERVICESDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2024-01 5/24/2024 EMA / LEASE OF 2018 TAHOE

$1,800.00SHANNON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 01122007201 VEHICLE AND MAINTENANCE      640194

$1,800.00Subtotal for Department: 22 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 6 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

24 PUBLIC DEFENDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

850099459 5/24/2024 JUDGE KANE

$100.00THOMSON REUTERS-WEST 01124007116 LEGAL SEARCH SUBSCRIPTION4326

$100.00Subtotal for Department: 24 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 7 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

28 COURT EXPENSES - JUDGESDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

15 CC JS 0430 5/24/2024 JUDGE

$137.75MARY ELLEN DOUGLASS 01128005341 OTHER EXPENDITURES640740

850099459 5/24/2024 JUDGE KANE

$286.88THOMSON REUTERS-WEST 01128005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-BOOKS/P4326

850213424 5/24/2024 LAW LIBRARY

$250.76THOMSON REUTERS-WEST 01128005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-BOOKS/P4326

$675.39Subtotal for Department: 28 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $11,793.44

Page 8 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 023 COUNTY RECORDER FEES

0236490-IN 5/24/2024 LAREDO APRIL 2024

$923.10FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02300005181 ONLINE EXPENSES1660

$923.10Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 023 : $923.10

Page 9 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 041 COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

81831 5/24/2024 ETSB

$1,181.25LECTRONICS, INC 04100005192 EQUIPMENT & REPAIRS41029

$1,181.25Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 041 : $1,181.25

Page 10 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 054 COUNTY HEALTH FUND

2.21.24 5/24/2024 MILEAGE / HEALTH DEPT

$19.23DOUGLAS LIEB 05400005012 TRAVEL54039

16483977 5/24/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$179.22LEAF 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL2614

UPPCT0000004634 5/24/2024 HEALTH DPET

$225.00MITCHELL & MCCORMICK INC 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL640148

JUNE 2024 5/24/2024 HEALTH DEPT / MONTHLY ADMIN CONTRACT

$2,043.40STEPHENSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPART. 05400005382 MANAGEMENT CONTRACT54018

CC27-92557 5/24/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$3,609.00STERLING BUSINESS MACHINES 05400005335 EQUIPMENT54050

INV609573 5/24/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$207.49STERLING BUSINESS MACHINES 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG54050

$6,283.34Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 054 : $6,283.34

Page 11 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 087 PUBLIC DEFENDER SAFET

Y ACT

38661838 5/24/2024 JUDGE

$386.25QUILL CORPORATION 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 3540

38694201 5/24/2024 JUDGE

$149.54QUILL CORPORATION 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 3540

38693850 5/24/2024 JUDGE

$183.54QUILL CORPORATION 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 3540

INV609495 5/24/2024 JUDGE

$3,500.00STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 4192

$4,219.33Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 087 : $4,219.33

Page 12 of 13Operator: janeadolph 5/24/2024 2:40:15 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = BPIV

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

20 COUNTY SHERRIFFDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

5.28.24 5/28/2024 911 / CELL PHONE

$540.00MATTHEW T.C. MAGILL 01120006011 911 DIRECTOR PHONE REIMB      2721

$540.00Subtotal for Department: 20 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $540.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 5/28/2024 11:03:00 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = BPIV

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

17 ZONINGDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

5.28.24 5/28/2024 FEMA TRAINING / MILEAGE & MEALS

$338.06JAICEE BUCKNER 01117005012 TRAVEL-ZONING640839

$338.06Subtotal for Department: 17 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $338.06

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 5/28/2024 3:24:09 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank =  

Batch = DAWN

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 029 VITAL RESOLUSION

5.31.24 5/31/2024 CO CLERK

$140.00DAWN BUSS 02900005441 ARCHIVING                     640877

$140.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 029 : $140.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 3:43:10 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank = 

Batch = 

Due Date = 6/6/2024

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

01 COURTHOUSE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

HL5829 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$175.00HARTZ LOCK CO. 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE1966

508631_4.26.24 6/6/2024 COURTHOUSE

$1,315.22HD SUPPLY 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640875

5.15.24 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$255.00JAY ZICKAU SNOW REMOVAL 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640202

1-132533741842 6/6/2024 COURTHOUSE

$691.00JOHNSON CONTROLS 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE2373

871351689 6/6/2024 COURTHOUSE

$2,183.28KONE, INC. 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE3040

D176709, C239357 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$73.98MT.CARROLL HOME CENTER 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE3078

86673320007_7.9.24 6/6/2024 COURTHOUSE

$197.21NICOR GAS 01101005006 UTILITIES--GAS1800

8430171 6/6/2024 COURTHOUSE

$114.34PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL INC. 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE3413

8555221 6/6/2024 COURTHOUSE

$114.34PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL INC. 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE3413

0721-008013320 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$196.28REPUBLIC SERVICES 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640762

310957 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT

$485.00RIVER CITIES HEATING, A/C & REFRIGERATIO 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640243

Page 1 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)

Committee on Claims



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

$5,800.65Subtotal for Department: 01 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 2 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

02 SUPPLIES AND RENTALSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

T2423845 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$259.00TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV. FUND 01102005319 RENTALS & LEASE640198

$259.00Subtotal for Department: 02 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 3 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

03 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

82665338 6/6/2024 CO CLERK / COPIER

$462.83DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN640560

INV609881 6/6/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK

$29.70STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN4192

INV609710 6/6/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK

$184.17STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN4192

$676.70Subtotal for Department: 03 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 4 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

05 SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

5.31.24 6/6/2024 ASSESSOR / MILEAGE

$32.16ANNETTE GRUHN 01105005012 TRAVEL1885

$32.16Subtotal for Department: 05 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 5 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

19 DOG CATCHERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

CLAIM 6.6.24-1 6/6/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / GAS

$188.04CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT. 01119006039 AUTO TELEPHONE & SUPPLIES2040

6.6.24-3 6/6/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / CELL PHONE

$80.18CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT. 01119007055 CELL PHONE2040

6.6.24-2 6/6/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / ENVELOPES AND POSTAGE

$186.05CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT. 01119005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES2040

6.6.24 6/6/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / CLEANING OF A/C

$340.00JOHNSON PLUMBING AND HEATING 01119006039 AUTO TELEPHONE & SUPPLIES2374

6.6.24 6/6/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / POUND DOOR

$411.96MT.CARROLL HOME CENTER 01119006039 AUTO TELEPHONE & SUPPLIES3078

$1,206.23Subtotal for Department: 19 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 6 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

20 COUNTY SHERRIFFDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

287318885952X05032024 6/6/2024 SHERIFF / ADMINISTRATOR

$519.84AT&T MOBILITY 01120007055 CELL PHONES640659

2732 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$1,353.00BIELEMA AUTO REPAIR & SALES 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE383

22999775-PX_5.10.24 6/6/2024 INMATE / JAIL

$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

027754583 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$52.09GALLS LLC 01120006046 UNIFORMS1771

027799945 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$160.30GALLS LLC 01120006046 UNIFORMS1771

16543855 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$214.79LEAF 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES2614

8375220240403 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$966.00MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. 01120006047 RADIO CONTRACT & REPAIRS640558

38661702 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$115.88QUILL CORPORATION 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3540

38487713 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$331.24QUILL CORPORATION 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3540

6.6.24 6/6/2024 SHERIFF / FUEL REIMBURSEMENT

$76.45RYAN KLOEPPING 01120006051 SHERIFF--FUEL640136

2178 6/6/2024 SHERIFF / POLICE ACADEMY KODY SCHEIDER

$6,671.04SAUK VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 01120006048 TRAINING FEES640821

116185 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$293.98UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

Page 7 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

115357-02 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$556.10UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

115187-03 6/6/2024 SHERIFF

$520.00UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

5.14.24 6/6/2024 CPR CERTIFICATION - HERPSTREITH & ANDERSON

$40.00UNITY POINT HEALTH 01120006048 TRAINING FEES640816

$11,920.71Subtotal for Department: 20 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 8 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

26 STATES ATTORNEYDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

IN2404228841 6/6/2024 STATES ATTY

$171.43BLUE360 MEDIA 01126005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES640260

INV609001 6/6/2024 STATES ATTY

$441.73STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01126005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES4192

$613.16Subtotal for Department: 26 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 9 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

27 CIRCUIT CLERKDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

MAY 2024 MILEAGE 6/6/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK

$27.46PATRICIA HIHER 01127005012 TRAVEL640133

$27.46Subtotal for Department: 27 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 10 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

30 COUNTY ADMINISTRATORDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

287318885952X05032024 6/6/2024 SHERIFF / ADMINISTRATOR

$448.59AT&T MOBILITY 01130005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640659

10745414592 6/6/2024 CTY ADMINISTRATOR

$3,206.67DELL MARKETING L.P. 01130005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1329

MAY 2024 MILEAGE 6/6/2024 UCCI & OGLE CTY BOARD MEETINGS

$297.48ROBERT JACHNICKI 01130005012 TRAVEL640852

$3,952.74Subtotal for Department: 30 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 11 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

31 FINANCIAL SOFTWAREDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2024-14743 6/6/2024 CARROLL COUNTY / JACHNICKI

$8,333.33CLEARGOV, INC 01131005431 FINANCIAL SOFTWARE SUPPOR640876

$8,333.33Subtotal for Department: 31 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 12 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

35 HIGHWAY OFFICE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

86643320004_7.9.24 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT

$73.33NICOR GAS 01135005006 UTILITIES--GAS                1800

$73.33Subtotal for Department: 35 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 13 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

37 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

6.6.24 6/6/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / POUND FLOOR

$4,166.40TSR CONCRETE COATINGS 01137005152 ANIMAL CONTROL PROJECTS     640824

$4,166.40Subtotal for Department: 37 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 14 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

39 HLTH INS ADMIN & SELF INS COSTDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

MAY-JUNE2024 6/6/2024 ADMIN FEE

$256.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01139006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

MAY 2024 6/6/2024 CLAIMS

$11,428.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01139006026 HEALTH INS SELF INS COSTS3276

$11,684.00Subtotal for Department: 39 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $48,745.87

Page 15 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 014 COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / REPAIRS TO CHIPPER

$4,188.00E.D. ETNYRE & CO. 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN1530

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / BALANCE DUE

$6.00HELM MATERIALS 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG640145

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / SHOP SUPPLIES

$138.12HELM TRUCK AND EQUIPMENT 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE640534

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / PRESSURE WASHER REPAIRS

$269.00HIGH PSI LTD 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN640761

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / GARAGE

$236.34NICOR GAS 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE1800

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / TRUCK REPAIRS

$3,278.10NORTHERN ILLINOIS DIESEL 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN3220

MAY-JUNE2024 6/6/2024 ADMIN FEE

$48.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01400006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

MAY 2024 6/6/2024 CLAIMS

$2,143.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01400006026 HEALTH INS SELF INS COSTS3276

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / GARGABE

$71.43REPUBLIC SERVICES 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE640762

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / SPRING HVAC MAINTENANCE

$107.00RIVER CITIES HEATING, A/C & REFRIGERATIO 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE640243

 CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 ACO CELLPHONE

$80.18U.S. CELLULAR 01400005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4577

CLAIM 4371-C 6/6/2024 CO ENG CELL PHONE

$91.76U.S. CELLULAR 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE4577

Page 16 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

$10,656.93Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 014 : $10,656.93

Page 17 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 015 TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL T

AX

7844-MT 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / CA-10

$5,396.23DOC'S EXCAVATING 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS640600

7845-MT 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / COLD PATCH

$4,087.80MANATT'S INC 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS640450

$9,484.03Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 015 : $9,484.03

Page 18 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 016 COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TA

X

2639-M 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / COLD PATCH

$7,239.95HELM MATERIALS 01600005117 MAINTENANCE640145

$7,239.95Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 016 : $7,239.95

Page 19 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 018 COUNTY MATCHING FUND

MAT 515 6/6/2024 EASEMENT RECORDINGS

$784.00CARROLL COUNTY CLERK & 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED1010

MAT 518 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / EASEMENTS

$2,070.00CYNTHIA A. DAW TYNE 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED640871

MAT 519 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / EASEMENTS

$1,550.00DAW ACRES CORPORATION 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED640346

MAT 520 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / EASEMENTS

$2,100.00GARY N. NYE 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED640872

MAT 521 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / EASEMENTS

$5,500.00GREGORY T. STENGEL 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED640870

MAT 516 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / GRANT MATCH

$829.87STEPHENSON CO. HIGHWAY DEPT 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED4179

MAT 522 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / ENG SVCS

$5,886.15WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED4900

MAT 517 6/6/2024 HWY DEPT / ENG SVCS

$2,168.20WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED4900

$20,888.22Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 018 : $20,888.22

Page 20 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 032 PROBATION SERVICE FEE

00286820244 6/6/2024 PROBATION

$105.00REDWOOD TOXICOLOGY LAB 03200007069 DRUG TESTING                  3598

$105.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 032 : $105.00

Page 21 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 041 COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

287318886106X05032024 6/6/2024 911

$616.08AT&T MOBILITY 04100005373 NETWORKING &TELEPHONE640659

10740696679 6/6/2024 MAGILL/911

$308.17DELL MARKETING L.P. 04100005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1329

INV2083 6/6/2024 911

$2,988.00RAPIDSOS, INC 04100005191 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES640869

$3,912.25Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 041 : $3,912.25

Page 22 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 054 COUNTY HEALTH FUND

APRIL-MAY2024 MILEAGE 6/6/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$338.35CHRISTOPHER PLATH 05400005012 TRAVEL640802

0000001 6/6/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$100.00GINA HALE 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640621

17264199393_7.9.24 6/6/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$57.81NICOR 05400005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE54118

MAY 2024 6/6/2024 CLAIMS

$1,429.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 05400006026 HEALTH INS SELF INS COSTS3276

MAY-JUNE2024 6/6/2024 ADMIN FEE

$32.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 05400006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

MAY 2024 6/6/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$260.00STEPHANIE S. HUGHES 05400005437 PART-TIME JANITOR640770

8007123474 6/6/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$86.55Stericycle 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL54008

$2,303.71Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 054 : $2,303.71

Page 23 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 056 PET POPULATION CONTR

OL FUND

6.6.24 6/6/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / ADOPTION DOG SPAY

$250.00NORTHERN ILLINOIS VET SERVICES 05600005503 SPAY & NEUTERING2951

$250.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 056 : $250.00

Page 24 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 074 TRANSPORTATION GRANT

CCTMAY3024 6/6/2024 PCOM / REIMBURSEMENT

$33,066.09CARROLL COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES ORG 07400005510 DISBURSEMENTS30001

CCTMAY2824 6/6/2024 PCOM / REIMBURSEMENT

$18,593.00CARROLL COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES ORG 07400005510 DISBURSEMENTS30001

CCTMAY1324 6/6/2024 PCOM

$40,040.31CARROLL COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES ORG 07400005510 DISBURSEMENTS30001

393753 6/6/2024 PCOM

$158.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 07400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1091

PCOM_4.30.24 6/6/2024 PCOM

$420.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 07400005189 TRANSIT GARAGE                1091

5.24.24 6/6/2024 REGION I MEETING

$98.75MARY MASZK 07400005012 TRAVEL                        640846

$92,376.15Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 074 : $92,376.15

Page 25 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 084 CORONA VIRUS RELIEF FU

ND

92977 6/6/2024 INMATE HOUSING NEEDS ASSESS

$7,285.76WOLD ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS 08400005563 JAIL IMPROVEMENTS             640800

$7,285.76Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 084 : $7,285.76

Page 26 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 087 PUBLIC DEFENDER SAFET

Y ACT

01 6/6/2024 MOVING & SETTING UP NEW OFFICE

$400.00RENEE BROWN 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 640873

SO92899 6/6/2024 JUDGE

$4,313.00STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 4192

INV371935 6/6/2024 JUDGE

$1,156.25STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 4192

INV372080 6/6/2024 JUDGE

$3,806.61STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 4192

$9,675.86Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 087 : $9,675.86

Page 27 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

Fund Totals
Fund Fund TotalFund Name

011 $48,745.87GENERAL FUND

014 $10,656.93COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

015 $9,484.03TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL 

016 $7,239.95COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TA

018 $20,888.22COUNTY MATCHING FUN

032 $105.00PROBATION SERVICE FEE

041 $3,912.25COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

054 $2,303.71COUNTY HEALTH FUND

056 $250.00PET POPULATION CONTR

074 $92,376.15TRANSPORTATION GRAN

084 $7,285.76CORONA VIRUS RELIEF F

087 $9,675.86PUBLIC DEFENDER SAFET

$212,923.73Total:

Page 28 of 28Operator: janeadolph 5/31/2024 11:00:41 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



 
 

May 30, 2024 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
June 6th, 2024 

 

BRIDGE INSPECTION CONTRACT 
1. Agenda Item: Approval of Bridge Inspection Engineering Agreement with Willet Hofmann and 

Associates. 
2. Approval of Resolution to Appropriate $48,300 for county-wide bridge inspections from County 

Bridge Aid Fund 
Attached is an Engineering Agreement with Willett Hofman & Associates for performing the next two 
years (2025 and 2026) bridge inspections. The per bridge inspection is $500 each, and the Special 
Feature Inspections will vary in cost from $500 to $800 each, depending on the potential to bundle into 
a single visit. County structures are estimated at $4,000 each year totaling $8,000 in total. The county 
will be splitting the cost of inspection on all township bridges 50:50. 
 
I estimate next year's expense to be $25,300, divided into $14,650 for the county and $10,650 for the 
townships. 2026 is estimated to be $23,000, divided into $13,500 for the county and $9,500 for the 
townships. The Department recommends that the county board approve the contract for a total of 
$48,300 and authorize the County Board Chairman to execute the agreement. 
 
SECTION 22-13707-00-BR LORAN ROAD OVER TRIB. TO EAST FORK OF PLUM RIVER CULVERT 
REPLACEMENT 

3. Approval of Resolution to Appropriate $100,000 for culvert replacement project Section 22-
13707-00-BR from County Bridge Fund 

 
This culvert replacement project carries Loran Road over a tributary to Plum River. It includes removing 
the existing 3’x3’ box culvert and installing a 2’ precast concrete pipe culvert with flared ends and a 4x4 
drop structure. The estimated cost of this project is $100,000, with said cost to be paid for with County 
Bridge Funds. The Department recommends approval by the County Board. 
 
If approved, the plans will be posted on the IDOT Bid website, and the letting will be at the Highway 
Department office at 10 am on June 21st. 
 
SECTION 22-17235-00-BR SHANNON RTE. OVER TRIB. TO LOST CREEK CULVERT REPLACEMENT 

4. Approval of Resolution to Appropriate $450,000 for culvert replacement project Section 22-
17235-00-BR from County Bridge Fund 

 
This culvert replacement project carries Shannon Route over a tributary to Lost Creek. It includes 
removing the existing 12’x5.5’ box culvert and installing a 12’x8’ box culvert with wingwall end sections 
extended far enough to eliminate the need for guardrail at this structure. The estimated cost of this 
project is $450,000, with said cost to be paid for with County Bridge Funds. The Department 
recommends approval by the County Board. 
 
If approved, the plans will be posted on the IDOT Bid website, and the letting will be held at the Highway 
Department office at 10 am on June 21st. 
 



 
 

MAINTENANCE 
40,687 tons of cold patch has been placed this spring. 
 
Seal coating will start after Georgetown Road, from Stone Bridge to Browning, edges have been 
rubblized. The plan is to start at Georgetown for seal coating and work our way clockwise around the 
county. As a reminder, the following county roads are scheduled for seal coating: 

• Brookville Road from Shannon Route to IL 84 
• Ogle Road from US Route 52 to the County Line 
• Seven Hill Road from IL 64 to Ashby Road 
• Georgetown Road from Loran Road to IL 73 
• Benson Road from IL 40 to IL 64 

We plan to close Benson Road when we are on-site seal coating. I will do a media blast as we approach 
that time so the motoring public is aware of the closure. 
 
We will be spraying weeds along Elizabeth Road, especially at guardrail locations. 
 
BIG CUT BRIDGE REPLACEMENT OVER BNSF 
The county has a Notice of Status Meeting with BNSF and the ICC on June 12th. 
 
IPWMAN 

5. Approval of Ordinance Authorizing Execution of the Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network 
Agreement 

 
I have included the information given to me to introduce the program when I learned about it at the 
County Engineer Conference. Also included is the Mutual Aid Agreement that would be signed if this 
ordinance is approved. The Department recommends approval by the County Board. 



























Extending Knowledge 
in Carroll County: 
Illinois Extension Quarterly Update



Our mission is to align research 
to needs and translate research 

into action plans that allow 
Illinois families, businesses, and 

community leaders to solve 
problems, make informed 

decisions, and adapt to changes 
and opportunities.

Chronic Disease Prevention and 
Management 

Social Emotional Health

Food Access

Thriving Youth

Workforce Preparedness/Advancement



2023 Impact Report

go.illinois.edu/unit4impact

https://extension.illinois.edu/sites/default/files/u4_web.pdf


Wits Fitness: Brain Health programming

Recent evaluations 
indicate:

• Increased social 
connections

• Improved thinking 
and challenge to 
work in a different 
way

• Increased 
awareness of the 
importance of 
remembering, 
solving problems, 
and paying attention



Mental Health First Aid
Monday, July 22

9 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

Mount Carroll Public Library

FREE Registration

Lunch Provided

For more information:

go.illinois.edu/CLWevents24 

https://extension.illinois.edu/clw/events


Monthly Series: 
Cooking with 
Vegetables

York Township Library

Call Library to Register

For more information:

go.illinois.edu/CLWevents24 

https://extension.illinois.edu/clw/events


Homegrown Healthy

When: June 5-August 21

Where: Mest Manor, Savanna

Funding provided by CDC ACTion grant

For more information or to register:

go.illinois.edu/homegrownhealthy

https://extension.illinois.edu/events/2024-05-29-homegrown-healthy-ogle-whiteside-counties


Learning in Lawn Chairs

Monthly Horticulture Lessons at the 

Lanark Farmers Market

Third Tuesday of each month from 3-4 p.m.

For more information:

go.illinois.edu/CLWevents24 

https://extension.illinois.edu/clw/events


Carroll County 4-H



Build Your Future 
SPIN Club  
Participant outcomes:

• “I can identify potential careers in my area of 
interest and know how to search for a job.”

• “Now I understand the importance of setting 
short-term, intermediate term, and long term 
goals.” 

• “I’m aware of what employers look for in job 
applications and resumes.”

• “Now, I’m prepared to be interviewed for a job.” 

• “This helped me think about my future plans and 
gave me Ideas on how to approach my future.” 



Growing Interest in
Future Careers





Passport to the World
Workshop Series

For more information:

go.illinois.edu/CLWevents24 

https://extension.illinois.edu/clw/events




Carroll County 4-H Show
August 3-10, 2024

Carroll County Fairgrounds, Milledgeville



West Carroll STEAAM Hub



House Bill 5792

Bipartisan legislation that 
benefits the people of 
Illinois in all 102 counties 
and will allow Illinois 
Extension to advance 
commercial agriculture 
throughout the state





go.illinois.edu/unit4calendar

Karla Belzer, County Director
815.632.3611

kbelzer@illinois.edu 

https://emails.illinois.edu/files/00/1343885700/springevents-2024-8.pdf
mailto:kbelzer@illinois.edu


University of Illinois, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Local Extension Councils Cooperating. University of Illinois Extension provides equal opportunities 
in programs and employment. If you experience any problems accessing or receiving the information in this course, or have feedback on the design, 
please email extension@illinois.edu for assistance.

© Copyright 2020 University of Illinois Board of Trustees

Karla Belzer
County Director

815.632.3611 – kbelzer@illinois.edu 

mailto:kbelzer@illinois.edu






































































































State of Illinois 
Before the County Board of Carroll County 

Resolution No._______ 
 
A resolution fixing the compensation for the offices of County Circuit Clerk/County Coroner/County Board 
Chair/and newly elected or appointed County Board Members for the term of office beginning December 1, 
2024 and ending November 30, 2028. 
  
WHEREAS, the Carroll County Board is statutorily required to determine the amount of compensation for the 
offices of County Circuit Clerk/County Coroner/County Board Chair/and newly elected or appointed 
County Board Members; and  
 
WHEREAS, 50 ILCS 145/2 (Local Government Officer Compensation Act) provides that the County Board 
must fix compensation for this office before December 1, 2024, and that said compensation cannot 
constitutionally be increased or decreased until after the term ends on November 30, 2028 (Illinois Constitution 
1970 Art. VII Sec. 9(b)); and 
  
WHEREAS, the County Fiscal Year for 2025 runs December 1, 2024 through November 30, 2025, the County 
Fiscal Year for 2026 runs December 1, 2025 through November 30, 2026, the County Fiscal Year for 2027 runs 
December 1, 2026 through November 30, 2027, and the County Fiscal Year for 2028 runs December 1, 2027 
through November 30, 2028; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Carroll County Board must balance its duty to compensate all elected officials fairly and 
adequately with its duty to protect the public’s tax dollars and provide County services effectively and 
efficiently. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF CARROLL COUNTY, ILLNOIS, that 
compensation for the County Circuit Clerk/County Coroner/County Board Chair/and newly elected or 
appointed County Board Members is set according to the following schedule: 

 
Position   FY2025  FY2026  FY2027  FY2028 
County Circuit Clerk  $ 77,376 $ 78,667 $ 81,027 $ 83,458 
County Coroner   $ 23,492 $ 23,682 $ 24,392 $ 25,123   
County Board Chair  $  6,000 $  6,000 $  6,000 $  6,000 
County Board Member  $     65 $     65 $     65 $     65   
 
Passed this 6th day of June, 2024 by the County Board of Carroll County. 
 
  _____________________________         
  Joseph J. Payette, County Board Chair 
 
State of Illinois ) 
   ) ss 
County of Carroll ) 
 
I, Amy Buss, County Clerk for Carroll County, State of Illinois, keeper of the records and files thereof in 
accordance with law, do hereby certify the foregoing resolution was passed by the Carroll County Board at its 
regular monthly meeting held at Mt. Carroll, Illinois, and the date aforesaid in accordance with law. 
In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and seal at my office at Mt. Carroll, Illinois this 6th day of 
June , A.D. 2024. 
 
[Seal]  ____________________________ 
  Amy Buss, Carroll County Clerk 



CHAPTER 745 GUEST HOME LICENSE ORDINANCE 

 1.1 Purpose and Applicability: The purpose of this ordinance shall be to control and regulate the use of 
property for transient lodging when said property cannot otherwise be permanently zoned with a 
lodging use. This ordinance removes guest homes as a special use within Chapter 700 and replaces it 
with a license requirement that allows lodging when the condi�ons herein can be met and maintained. 
The control shall be an atempt to mi�gate unwanted nuisance ac�vi�es, ensure safe clean loca�ons for 
guests as well as simplifying the process of applica�on for residents seeking to offer guest homes to the 
public. This ordinance shall apply to all areas outside of a municipality under the jurisdic�on of Carroll 
County, IL. all areas under the jurisdic�on of Carroll County, IL. 

 1.2 Defini�ons: The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this Chapter, have the 
meanings shown: 

 “GUEST HOME” - A residen�al dwelling that is offered to guests for lodging on a transient basis.  

“Guest House/Home” – A single-family dwelling rented out on a transient basis for the purpose of 
providing guest accommoda�ons to the public for a charge 

“GUEST” – A guest is a member of the public who is paying for the use of lodging. 

 “TRANSIENT” – A period of �me for the use of lodging that is less than a consecu�ve 30 days.  

“Transient Resident” – Any person who occupies a Guest House/Home for less than thirty (30) 
consecu�ve days. 

“LODGING” - a transient living or sleeping place provided to a guest in exchange for payment. 

 

 2. License and Registra�on Required: A yearly license and registra�on is required of all owners seeking 
to use property for guest home lodging. No guest home shall be installed or maintained on a property 
without a valid and current license issued from Carroll County, IL. All new license applica�ons must be 
filed with the zoning department and approved by county board ac�on. Renewal applica�ons will not 
require county board ac�on. Exis�ng licenses must be renewed every year through the zoning 
department by April 1st to maintain the license renewal status. All applica�ons shall include the 
following informa�on, or other informa�on as requested: *Informa�on on file may be used to aid in 
renewal. 

 i. Owner name and contact informa�on 

 ii. Property Site Address  

iii. A copy of the lodging lis�ng, including all policies, quite hour requirements, ADA accessibility 
requirements, parking restric�ons, facili�es or ameni�es with restric�ons thereto, a general descrip�on 
of the rental including the number of sleeping unites and bathrooms as well as a completed emergency 
plan with contact informa�on.  

iv. Proof of Liability Insurance. 



 v. Documenta�on of approved well, water and sep�c infrastructure. An applicant seeking a guest home 
license must obtain approval from the health department or other tes�ng facility for the water, well and 
sep�c systems that will be used at the guest home loca�on. Inspec�ons may be required. 
Documenta�on on file with the Carroll County Health Department may be used to sa�sfy these 
requirements. 

 3. Inspec�on/Onsite Requirements: Owners or their designated agent are required to show proof of 
compliance and/or submit to an inspec�on of the property. If an inspec�on is needed it will be 
scheduled for a convenient �me with the owner or their agent as needed. The following list of onsite 
requirements are to be maintained at all �mes. Failure to maintain any of these requirements may 
cons�tute a viola�on, fine, suspension, revoca�on and/or disqualifica�on. 

i. Prominently displayed or easily located working fire ex�nguisher.  

ii. Smoke and Carbone Monoxide Alarms in common areas 

iii. Carroll County Guest Home License Document 

iv. Emergency Plan and Contact Informa�on 

v. All below grade sleeping areas must meet the Emergency Escape & Rescue Opening Code for below 
grade bedrooms. 

 4. Hotel/Motel Tax. For each license and loca�on granted approval, the owner is required to file and pay 
applicable hotel and motel tax to the Carroll County, IL Treasurer’s Office. 

 5. Applica�on Fees. The cost to apply for a new license is $250 (two hundred and fi�y dollars). License 
renewal and registra�on is available on a yearly schedule through the zoning department, ending April 
1st of every year. The cost to renew an exis�ng license is $100 (one hundred dollars). Failure to renew a 
license within the renewal period ending April 1st of every year will forfeit the applica�on as a renewal 
and require a new license applica�on; Including but not limited to no�fica�on, county board ac�on and 
new license fee. 

 6. List of ac�ve licenses. The zoning department shall keep a complete record of all ac�ve licenses; and 
shall furnish the list by request as a public document. 

 7. Neighbor No�fica�on. It shall be the responsibility of the zoning department to make no�fica�on by 
regular mail to all property owners of record located within 250 of a subject property applying for a new 
license. No such no�fica�on will be required for a license renewal. 

 8. No Change of Loca�on. No change of loca�on shall be allowed for any license issued and each 
property will be required to have its own guest home license. 

 9. Transi�on of Guest Home Special Use Permit to License. Loca�ons that have a current guest home 
special use will be allowed to use that permit for the remainder of the 5-year period that has been 
issued. Special use permits for guest homes will be provided the chance to con�nue as a renewal license 
applica�on at the end of that renewal period. Loca�ons that exceed or have exceeded their 5- year 
renewal period will be required to complete a new license applica�on. All other requirements set forth 
herein will apply to guest home special use permits on the effec�ve date of this ordinance. 



 10. Fines, viola�ons and severability. A person who violates, disobeys, neglects or refuses to comply 
with the provisions of this ordinance may be fined up to one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for each 
offense and each week of non-compliance. Ongoing or repe��ve offenses and/or nuisance ac�vi�es, 
including but not limited to: excessive late hour noise, unkept trash, improper parking, disorderly 
conduct or failure of an onsite requirement listed in #3 may cons�tute a viola�on. Upon evidence that a 
viola�on has been commited the Zoning Administrator will conduct the following: 

 i. No�fy the property owner of the viola�on, giving a reasonable �me frame determined by the Zoning 
Officer in which to pay a fine and/or take correc�ve ac�on(s). 

 ii. The Zoning Officer is authorized to serve upon any person in viola�on of this ordinance a uniform 
non-traffic cita�on which shall require a fine and/or the violator’s appearance before the circuit court.  

iii. The State’s Atorney may bring suit seeking to permanently enjoin any ongoing viola�on of this 
ordinance that cannot otherwise be resolved. 

 iv. The county board may act to suspend, revoke or disqualify a license and/or license holder a�er an 
atempt has been made to correct a viola�on and a�er no�fica�on of such ac�on has been made to the 
license holder.  

Effec�ve Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval.  

ADOPTED THIS ___19th___ day of ___May__, 2022. _________KEVIN REIBEL_____ County Board 
Chairman 



Prepared by:

Noel McDonald

nmcdonald@mabasement.com

MidAmerica Basement Systems

www.midamericabasementsystems.com

4525 Buckeye St

Davenport IA 52802

TF (800) 541-8006

F (563) 326-3214

License #0700209*GEN

Prepared on:

Wed May 29 2024

Prepared for:

Renkes, Sara

coengr@carrollcountyil.gov

(815) 590-2999

Job Location:

10735 Mill Rd

Mount Carroll IL 61053

PR#PR162704

Project Summary
Core through block and brick ...................................................................................................................................... $100.00

Economy Sump Pit Lid .................................................................................................................................................. $180.00

Premium Radon Mitigation System Premium Radon Mitigation System ........................................................... $1,200.00

Zoeller M95 ................................................................................................................................................................... $525.00

Total Contract Price ................................................................................................................................................. $2,005.00

Deposit ......................................................................................................................................................................... ($200.50)

Amount Due Upon Installation ............................................................................................................................... $1,804.50

Customer Consent
Any alteration from the above specifications and corresponding price adjustment (if necessary) will be executed only upon written
orders at the Customer’s request or approval. Completing the work in this Proposal at the time scheduled is contingent upon
accidents or delays beyond our control. Installation of the system does not include painting, finished carpentry, extending
discharge lines, electrical work, or replacement of floor coverings. Homeowner assumes all responsibility for damages due to
breakage of any hidden fuel/utility service lines, though we will do our best to avoid such damage. This Proposal may be withdrawn
if not accepted by the Customer within 30 days. All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed according to
standard practices. If the existing construction and/or concrete thickness are not of normal construction and/or do not meet
building code, additional charges may be required to prepare the affected area for proper installation.

Authorized Signature ________________________________________ Date ________________

Acceptance of Contract— I am/we are aware of and agree to the contents of this Proposal, the attached Job Detail sheet(s), and
the attached Limited Warranty, (together, the "Contract"). You are authorized to do the work as specified in the Contract. I fully
understand and accept the transferable warranty provided, which covers only the areas of the basement addressed and does not
cover water damage. This Proposal is based primarily on the Customer’s description of the problem. Customer shall grant
contractor a 60 day right to remedy any problem after reported. Some dust should be expected from work, homeowner is
responsible for covering personal items prior to start of work. Project to be scheduled within 180 days of the signed date or the
contract is subject to price/product changes. I will pay your service charge of 1-1/2% per month (18% per annum) if my account is
30 days or more past due, plus your attorney's fees and costs to collect and enforce this contract.

Customer Signature __________________________________________ Date ________________

Payments to be made in full upon completion Initial ____________

Full Perimeter system, TripleSafe sump, & Full wall system recommended Initial ____________

MidAmerica Basement Systems
4525 Buckeye St Davenport IA 52802

Job Location
10735 Mill Rd Mount Carroll IL 61053

Page 1/5
Wed May 29 2024



Drawing

MidAmerica Basement Systems
4525 Buckeye St Davenport IA 52802

Job Location
10735 Mill Rd Mount Carroll IL 61053

Page 2/5
Wed May 29 2024



Job Details
Install one piece flat plastic cover over existing sump pit. Company will install a radon mitigation system

with a Premium Radon Fan with (SubSlab SumpPit, or SubMembrane) Depressurization with full Pressure

Field Extension Testing. The actual radon mitigation system design may change at the time of the install

after Field Pressure Extension Testing has been performed by our licensed installers. Company installation

team leader will discuss system design options and make final decision with homeowner prior to system

installation. Company will provide a 3rd Party Test kit for post testing. Install Zoeller M95 1/2hp cast iron

sump pump.

Contractor Will
- -Perform the work specified.

Customer Will
- -If Customer does not have the prep work (listed below) done as specified in the paperwork, an additional

cost of $225 per man, per hour will be added to the quoted price.

-Mark any private lines, including but not limited to (water line from the stop box to the home, electrical to

any out buildings, geothermal lines, propane, etc.) that may be hidden underground, and assumes all liability

if damage should occur to such lines.

-Repair any sprinkler lines that may be damaged during the installation

Product List
Core through block and brick ........................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Economy Sump Pit Lid ....................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Premium Radon Mitigation System Premium Radon Mitigation System ................................................................................... 1 

Zoeller M95 ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 1 

MidAmerica Basement Systems
4525 Buckeye St Davenport IA 52802

Job Location
10735 Mill Rd Mount Carroll IL 61053

Page 3/5
Wed May 29 2024



Limited Warranty
Standard Exclusions Permitted By State Law - This Limited Warranty  (“Warranty”) is made in lieu of and excludes all other warranties, express or
implied, and all other obligations on the part of the contractor (“Contractor”) to the customer (“Customer”). There are no other verbal or written
warranties, no warranties which extend beyond the description on the face hereof, and NO WARRANTIES OF EXPRESS OR IMPLIED
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow the exclusion or limitation of certain warranties, so some
of the above exclusions and limitations may not apply to Customer.

General Terms  - For the applicable time periods indicated below, this Warranty is transferable, for a fee, to future owners of the structure on which the
work specified in this Contract is completed and the contractor is notified within 30 days of the real estate transfer. This Warranty is in effect if the job
specified in this Contract is completed and paid in full and, alternatively, is null and void if full payment is not received. If, at a later date, customer fails
to pay contractor within thirty (30) days for additional services contractor provides to customer at customer’s request (for example an annual
maintenance appointment), this warranty will be suspended until full payment is made. Contractor does not warrant products not mentioned below,
but some of such products may be covered by a manufacturer’s warranty. All material used is warranted to be as specified in this Contract. All work will
be completed in a workmanlike manner according to the standard practices of the industry. Contractor’s workers are fully covered by Workers’
Compensation insurance.  Customer should retain this document for full details on the warranty.

Radon Mitigation System - The Radon Mitigation System (the “System”) is warranted to be free of defects due to workmanship or materials for five (5)
years from the date of installation. Additionally,
If initialed here: _______________, Contractor warrants that after completion of the Work, the radon levels in the livable areas of the Structure will
measure below 4 pCi/L for five (5) years from the day the Work is installed. Should a radon test measure levels at or above 4 pCi/L after the completion
of the Work and prior to the end of the five (5) year period, Contractor will, at no further cost to Customer, take whatever actions its deems necessary
to reduce the levels to below 4 pCi/L or, at Contractor’s discretion, may refund to Customer the price that Customer paid to Contractor for the System.
If initialed here: _______________, Contractor warrants that after completion of the Work, the radon levels in the livable areas of the Structure will
measure below 4 pCi/L for ten (10) years from the day the Work is installed. Should a radon test measure levels at or above 4 pCi/L after the
completion of the Work and prior to the end of the ten (10) year period, Contractor will, at no further cost to Customer, take whatever actions it deems
necessary to reduce the levels to below 4 pCi/L or, at Contractor’s discretion, may refund to Customer the price that Customer paid to Contractor for
the System.
If initialed here: _______________, Contractor does NOT warrant that after completion of the Work that the radon levels in the livable areas of the
Structure will measure below 4 pCi/L. Should a radon test measure levels at or above 4 pCi/L after the completion of the Work, Contractor can, at
Customer’s request, attempt further mitigation measures at an additional cost to Customer to reduce the levels to below 4 pCi/L although such
reduction may not be possible.

Exclusions From This Warranty - This Warranty does not cover and Contractor specifically disclaims liability for: 1) exterior waterproofing; 2) system
damage caused by Customer’s negligence, misuse, abuse, or alteration; 3) dust incidental to installation; 4) damage to real or personal property of any
type such as walls, counter tops, floor coverings, framing, sheetrock, exterior materials, cabinets, appliances and so on including any damage alleged to
have been done by the Contractor's use of heavy equipment necessary to complete the job, or alleged to have been done by the foundation lifting
operation; 5) utility line breakage; 6) Any injury or damage caused by mold to property or person; 7) failure or delay in performance or damage caused
by acts of God (flood, fire, storm, methane gas, etc.), acts of civil or military authority, or any other cause outside of its control; 8) damage done during a
lifting operation; 9) damage from basement water seepage; 10) heave of foundation or slab or any damages caused by it including adjacent slabs that
have heaved making the repaired slabs look lower; and 11) damage caused by lateral movements and forces of hillside creep, land sliding or slumping of
fill soils of deep embankments. 12) any damages caused by radon gas including, but not limited to, property damage, personal injury, loss of income,
emotional distress, death, loss of use, loss of value, and adverse health effects, or any other effects. 13) if additional radon piping is needed to help with
warranty concerns and not able to connect to the existing radon mitigation system, either by home obstructions or the customer/homeowner not
wanting to remove finished ceilings/drywall, an additional radon mitigation system may be required at an additional charge to the customer.

Items For Which Customer Is Responsible - Customer is responsible for: 1) making full payment to the crew leader upon completion of the work; 2)
preparing the work area for installation including moving all obstacles; 3) any finish carpentry, painting, paneling, landscaping, sealing of joints and
cracks in concrete etc. that may be necessary after Contractor’s work is finished if not included in scope of work; 4) marking any private lines such as
satellite cables, propane lines, sprinkler system lines, etc.; 5) maintaining positive drainage away from the repaired wall(s); 6) keeping gutters clean and
in good working order; 7) directing downspouts a sufficient distance away from the repaired wall(s) and slabs and maintaining positive drainage away
from the foundation; 8) maintaining proper expansion joints in concrete slabs that are adjacent to the repaired wall(s); and 9) any items mentioned in
this Contract under “Customer Will” or “Additional Notes.”

Prevent System Problems/Service Calls - To optimize performance of the System, Contractor recommends annual maintenance at an additional charge.
During the applicable warranty period, service calls made to address issues that are not caused by Contractor or that are a result of abuse to the
System will be billed at Contractor's regular rate.

Electrical - Electrical installation is performed by Rock River Electric. Rock River Electric is a separate business not attached in any way to MidAmerica
Basement Systems. MidAmerica Basement Systems is excluded from liability in any cases involved in work performed by Rock River Electric.
Electrical work is limited to basic installation of outlets or electrical service to components installed by MidAmerica Basement Systems. Additional
work needed to ensure electrical meets code is not included in any basic installation. Additions of panels, sub-panels or replacement of electrical panels
would be at an additional cost to the homeowner. Any changes would be the responsibility of the homeowner and completed by Rock River Electric or
licensed electrician.

MidAmerica Basement Systems
4525 Buckeye St Davenport IA 52802

Job Location
10735 Mill Rd Mount Carroll IL 61053

Page 4/5
Wed May 29 2024



Notice of Right to Cancel
The date of the transaction, which is: _________________________

You may cancel this transaction, without any penalty or obligation, within three business days from the
above date.
If you cancel, any property traded in, any payments made by you under the contract or sales, and any
negotiable instrument executed by you will be returned within ten business days following receipt by the
seller of your cancellation notice, and any security interest arising out of the transaction will be canceled.
If you cancel, you must make available to the seller at your residence, in substantially as good condition as
when received, any goods delivered to you under this contract or sale; or you may if you wish, comply with
the instructions of the seller regarding the return shipment of the goods at the seller's expense and risk.

How to Cancel
To cancel this transaction, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of this cancellation notice or any other
written notice, or send a telegram, to:

MidAmerica Basement Systems
(800) 541-8006

4525 Buckeye St
Davenport IA 52802

If you do not agree to return the goods to the seller or if the seller does not pick them up within twenty
days of the date of your notice of cancellation, you may retain or dispose of the goods without any further
obligation.

If you decide to cancel this contract, for any reason, after your legal THREE DAY RIGHT TO CANCEL, you
will forfeit your total deposit amount.

________________________________________________________________________________________________
Owner's Signature                                                                                Date

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the a copy of the Notice of Right to Cancel.

________________________________________________________________________________________________
Owner's Signature                                                                                Date

________________________________________________________________________________________________
Owner's Signature                                                                                Date

MidAmerica Basement Systems
4525 Buckeye St Davenport IA 52802

Job Location
10735 Mill Rd Mount Carroll IL 61053

Page 5/5
Wed May 29 2024



 
 

 
 

     RESOLUTION 
 
 WHEREAS, The County of  Carroll  entered into an Engineering Agreement with Willett 
Hofmann and Associates for the inspection of the county wide bridges in accordance with the National 
Brige Inspection Standards,  and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  in compliance with  the aforementioned project, it is  necessary  
 
for the County to appropriate funds to pay for the cost of this work, 
  
  
 NOW  THEREFORE, be it resolved, that there is hereby appropriated the  
 
sum of  Fourty Eight Thousand  Three Hundred Dollars   ($48,300.00) of County Bridge  Funds  
 
thereof as may be necessary to pay its share of the cost of this improvement, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED,  that the County agrees to pass a supplemental  
 
resolution to provide necessary funds for the cost of this improvement if the amount appropriated 
 
 herein proves to be insufficient to cover said cost. 
 
 
 
 
 I,    Amy R. Buss  , County Clerk in and for said County, in  
 the State of Illinois, hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and  
 complete copy of a resolution adopted by the County Board of Carroll   
 County, at its June Meeting held at Mount Carroll, on June 6, 2024. 
 
 
    
 
     { S E A L }    _______________________________________ 
       Carroll County Clerk 



 
 

 
 

     RESOLUTION 
 
 WHEREAS, The County of  Carroll  entered into an Engineering Agreement with Willett 
Hofmann and Associates for the inspection of the county wide bridges in accordance with the National 
Brige Inspection Standards,  and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  in compliance with  the aforementioned project, it is  necessary  
 
for the County to appropriate funds to pay for the cost of this work, 
  
  
 NOW  THEREFORE, be it resolved, that there is hereby appropriated the  
 
sum of  Fourty Eight Thousand  Three Hundred Dollars   ($48,300.00) of County Bridge  Funds  
 
thereof as may be necessary to pay its share of the cost of this improvement, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED,  that the County agrees to pass a supplemental  
 
resolution to provide necessary funds for the cost of this improvement if the amount appropriated 
 
 herein proves to be insufficient to cover said cost. 
 
 
 
 
 I,    Amy R. Buss  , County Clerk in and for said County, in  
 the State of Illinois, hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and  
 complete copy of a resolution adopted by the County Board of Carroll   
 County, at its June Meeting held at Mount Carroll, on June 6, 2024. 
 
 
    
 
     { S E A L }    _______________________________________ 
       Carroll County Clerk 



 
 

 
 

     RESOLUTION 
 
 WHEREAS, The County of  Carroll  proposes to replace a drainage structure on C.H. #15,   
 
Section 22-13707-00-BR on LORAN ROAD, and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  in compliance with  the aforementioned project, it is  necessary  
 
for the County to appropriate funds to pay for the cost of this improvement, 
  
  
 NOW  THEREFORE, be it resolved, that there is hereby appropriated the  
 
sum of  One Hundred Thousand Dollars   ($100,000.00) of County Bridge  Funds  
 
thereof as may be necessary to pay its share of the cost of this improvement, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED,  that the County agrees to pass a supplemental  
 
resolution to provide necessary funds for the cost of this improvement if the amount appropriated 
 
 herein proves to be insufficient to cover said cost. 
 
 
 
 
 I,    Amy R. Buss  , County Clerk in and for said County, in  
 the State of Illinois, hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and  
 complete copy of a resolution adopted by the County Board of Carroll   
 County, at its June Meeting held at Mount Carroll, on June 6, 2024. 
 
 
    
 
     { S E A L }    _______________________________________ 
       Carroll County Clerk 



 
 

 
 

     RESOLUTION 
 
 WHEREAS, The County of  Carroll  proposes to replace a drainage structure on C.H. #19,   
 
Section 22-17235-00-BR on SHANNON ROUTE, and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  in compliance with  the aforementioned project, it is  necessary  
 
for the County to appropriate funds to pay for the cost of this improvement, 
  
  
 NOW  THEREFORE, be it resolved, that there is hereby appropriated the  
 
sum of  Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars   ($450,000.00) of County Bridge  Funds  
 
thereof as may be necessary to pay its share of the cost of this improvement, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED,  that the County agrees to pass a supplemental  
 
resolution to provide necessary funds for the cost of this improvement if the amount appropriated 
 
 herein proves to be insufficient to cover said cost. 
 
 
 
 
 I,    Amy R. Buss  , County Clerk in and for said County, in  
 the State of Illinois, hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and  
 complete copy of a resolution adopted by the County Board of Carroll   
 County, at its June Meeting held at Mount Carroll, on June 6, 2024. 
 
 
    
 
     { S E A L }    _______________________________________ 
       Carroll County Clerk 



 
ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 
An Ordinance Authorizing Execution of the 

Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network Agreement (IPWMAN) 
WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, authorizes units 

of local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not prohibited 
by law or ordinance; and,  

WHEREAS, the "Intergovernmental Cooperation Act", 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., provides that any 
power or powers, privileges or authority exercised or which may be exercised by a unit of local 
government may be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other unit of local government; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 5 of the "Intergovernmental Cooperation Act", 5 ILCS 220/5, provides that 
any one or more public agencies may contract with any one or more public agencies to perform any 
governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the contract 
is authorized by law to perform, provided that such contract shall be authorized by the governing body 
of each party to the contract; and,  

WHEREAS, the County Board Chair and the County Board of Carroll County have determined 
that it is in the best interests of the county’s emergency departments and its residents to enter into an 
intergovernmental agreement to secure to each the benefits of mutual aid in public works and the 
protection of life and property from an emergency or disaster and to provide for public works assistance, 
training and other necessary functions to further the response and recovery from said emergency or 
disaster. The principal objective of the public works mutual aid assistance being the response to and 
recovery from any emergency or disaster and the return of the community to as near normal as quickly 
as possible. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Board Chair of Carroll County, Illinois as 
follows:  

SECTION ONE: That the County Engineer be and are hereby authorized to execute an Agreement 
for participation in the Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network (IPWMAN), a copy of said Agreement 
being attached hereto and being made a part hereof.  

APPROVED this 6th day of June, 2024 , by a roll call vote as follows:  

AYES: __________________________ 

NAYS: __________________________ 

ABSENT: ________________________ 

______________________________________ 
(Authorized Signature)  

ATTEST:  

______________________________________ 
(Authorized Signature) 







 1 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

 
Illinois Public Works  

Mutual Aid Network Agreement 
 

This Public Works Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is entered into by________________________ 
which has, by executing this Agreement, manifested its intent to participate in an Intrastate Program for 
Mutual Aid and Assistance, hereinafter entitled the “Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network 
(IPWMAN)”; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, (hereinafter “Act”) 
authorizes units of local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner 
not prohibited by law or ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, any community that is a home rule unit of local government under the 1970 Constitution of 
the State of Illinois and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 
government and affairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act provides that any one or more public agencies may contract with any one or more 
other public agencies to set forth fully the purposes, powers, rights, objectives and responsibilities of the 
contracting Parties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., provides that any 
power or powers, privileges or authority exercised or which may be exercised by a unit of local 
government may be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other unit of local government including a 
unit of local government from another state; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties to this Agreement may voluntarily agree to participate in mutual aid and 
assistance activities conducted under the State of Illinois Intrastate Mutual Aid and Assistance Program 
and the Interstate Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC).  Parties may voluntarily agree 
to participate in an interstate Mutual Aid and Assistance Program for public works related agencies 
including, but not limited to; local municipal public works departments, township road districts, unit road 
districts, county highway departments, public water agencies and public wastewater agencies or any other 
governmental entity that performs a public works function through this Agreement if such a program 
were established. 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties hereto are units of local government as defined by the Constitution of the State of 
Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties recognize that they are vulnerable to a variety of potential, natural and man-made 
disasters; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Parties to this Agreement wish to provide mutual aid and assistance to one another during 
times of disaster or public works emergencies. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:   



 2 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

SECTION I:  PURPOSE 
 
The Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network (IPWMAN) program is hereby established to provide a 
method whereby public works related agencies, including, but not limited to, local municipal public 
works departments, township road districts, unit road districts, county highway departments, public water 
agencies and public wastewater agencies or any other governmental entity that performs a public works 
function in need mutual aid assistance may request aid and assistance in the form of personnel, 
equipment, materials and/or other associated services as necessary from other public works related 
agencies.  The purpose of this Agreement is to formally document such a program.   
 
SECTION II:  DEFINITIONS 
 
The following definitions will apply to the terms appearing in this Agreement. 
 
A.  “AGENCY” means any municipal public works agency, township road district, unit road district, 
county highway departments, publicly-owned water organization and publicly-owned wastewater 
organization or any other governmental entity that performs a public works function that abides by the 
provisions as found in this Agreement.  
 
B.  “AID AND ASSISTANCE" includes, but is not limited to, personnel, equipment, facilities, services, 
materials and supplies and any other resources needed to provide mutual aid response. 
 
C.  "AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE" means a Party's employee who, by reason of his or her position, 
has been authorized, in writing by that Party, to request, offer, or provide aid and assistance pursuant to 
this Agreement.  Each Party’s initial authorized representative, and the representative’s title, is listed on 
the contact list.   If the title of the authorized representative as listed by name on the contact list has 
changed, such change shall have no effect on the authority of the authorized representative and the named 
person shall continue to be the authorized representative until a different person is named as the 
authorized representative in writing by the Party.  In the event that the person who is listed as authorized 
representative is no longer employed by the Party, the successor in the office formerly held by the 
authorized representative shall automatically become the authorized representative unless the Party 
indicates otherwise in writing.  Each Party’s authorized representative shall be responsible to designate 
someone to supervise that Party’s employees who are engaged in the receipt or furnishing of aid and 
assistance, including, but not limited to, opening of public ways; removal of debris; building of protective 
barriers; management of physical damage to structures and terrain; transportation of persons, supplies, 
and equipment; and repair and operation of municipal utilities. 
 
D.  “BOARD OF DIRECTORS” is a group of representatives from the Parties to the IPWMAN 
Agreement elected to organize and maintain the program.  The Board of Directors shall consist of 
members of the IPWMAN.  Qualifications and terms for the Board members shall be defined in the By-
Laws of the Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network, Inc. 
 
E.  “BOARD MEMBER” is a representative of the Association (IPWMAN) serving on the Board of 
Directors.  
 
F.  “DISASTER" means a calamitous incident threatening loss of life or significant loss or damage to 
property, including, but not limited to flood, winter storm, hurricane, tornado, dam break, or other 
naturally-occurring catastrophe or man-made, accidental, military, or paramilitary incident, or biological 
or health disasters or a natural or manmade incident that is, or is likely to be, beyond the control of the 
services, personnel, equipment and facilities of a Party that requires assistance under this Mutual Aid and 



 3 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

Assistance Agreement, but must be coordinated through the appropriate local accredited/certified 
Emergency Management Agency coordinator.     
 
G.  “IPWMAN” is the acronym for the Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network.   
 
H. “LOCAL EMERGENCY” is defined as an urgent need requiring immediate action or attention beyond 
normal capabilities, procedures and scope for aid and assistance by an agency.  
 
I.  "MUTUAL AID RESOURCE LIST" means the list of the equipment, personnel and other resources that 
each Party has available for the provision of aid and assistance to other Parties. This list shall be 
periodically updated in accordance with the Operational Plan.  
 
J.  “NATIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (NIMS)” a Presidential directive that provides a 
consistent nationwide approach that allows federal, state, local and tribal governments as well as private-
sector and nongovernmental organizations to work together to manage incidents and disasters of all kinds.  
 
K. "PARTY" means an agency which has adopted and executed this Agreement.  
 
L.”PERIOD OF ASSISTANCE” means a specified period of time when a Responding Agency assists a 
Requesting Agency.  The period commences when personnel, equipment, or supplies depart from a 
Responding Agency’s facility and ends when the resources return to their facility (portal to portal).  All 
protections identified in the Agreement apply during this period.  The specified Period of Assistance may 
occur during response to or recovery from an emergency, as previously defined. 
 
M. "RESPONDING AGENCY"  means the Party or Agency which has received a request to furnish aid 
and assistance from another Party and has agreed to provide the same.     
 
N.  “REQUESTING AGENCY” means the Party or Agency requesting and receiving aid and assistance 
from a Responding Agency.   
 
SECTION III:  RESPONSIBILITY OF PARTIES 
 
A.  PROVISION OF AID.  Each Party recognizes that it may be requested to provide aid and assistance at 
a time when it is necessary to provide similar aid and assistance to the Party’s own constituents.  This 
Agreement shall not be construed to impose any unconditional obligation on any Party to provide aid and 
assistance.  A Party may choose not to render aid and assistance at any time, for any reason. 
 
B. RECRUITMENT.  The Parties hereby encourage each other to enlist other agencies to adopt and 
execute this Agreement. 
 
C.  AGREEMENT FOR BENEFIT OF PARTIES.  All functions and activities performed under this 
Agreement are for the benefit of the Parties to this Agreement.  Accordingly, this Agreement shall not be 
construed to be for the benefit of any third parties and no third parties shall have any right or cause of 
action against the Parties to this Agreement. 
 
D.  IMMUNITIES.  All immunities provided by law to the Parties shall be fully applicable to the Parties 
providing or receiving aid and assistance pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the 
Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq. 
 
E.  MEMBERSHIP.  To be a member in good standing, a Party shall be responsible for dues and other 
obligations as specified in the IPWMAN By-Laws and Operational Plan.  



 4 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

SECTION IV:  ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
At a minimum, the Board of Directors shall meet annually at a meeting place designated by the Board of 
Directors to review and discuss this Agreement and, if applicable, to recommend amendments to this 
Agreement.   The Board of Directors shall have the power and signing authority to carry out the purposes 
of this Agreement, including but not limited to the power to: adopt by-laws; execute agreements and 
documents approved by the Board of Directors; develop specific operating plans, procedures and protocol 
for requesting assistance; organize meetings; operate a website; disseminate information; create 
informational brochures; create subcommittees; maintain lists of the Parties; maintain equipment and 
supply inventory lists; and deal with Party issues. 
 
SECTION V:  PROCEDURES FOR REQUESTING ASSISTANCE 
 
The Board of Directors will promulgate and regularly update procedures for requesting assistance through 
the Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network (IPWMAN) Operational Plan. 
  
SECTION VI:  RESPONDING AGENCY'S ASSESSMENT OF AVAILABILITY OF 
RESOURCES 
 
The Board of Directors will promulgate and regularly update procedures for responding agency’s 
assessment of availability of resources through IPWMAN Operational Plan. 
  
 
SECTION VII:  SUPERVISION AND CONTROL 
 
A.   DESIGNATION OF RESPONDING AGENCY’S SUPERVISORY PERSONNEL.  Responding Agency 
shall designate a representative who shall serve as the person in charge of coordinating the initial work 
assigned to the Responding Agency’s employees by the Requesting Agency.  The Requesting Agency 
shall direct and coordinate the work being assigned to the Responding Agency(s) and the Requesting 
Agency’s employees. All actions shall be consistent with and in accordance with the National Incident 
Management System (NIMS) and the IPWMAN Operational Plan.    
 
B.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF RESPONDING AGENCY’S SUPERVISORY PERSONNEL.  The Board of 
Directors will promulgate and regularly update procedures for Responding Agency’s supervisory 
personnel through the IPWMAN Operational Plan. 

 
 
SECTION VIII:  LENGTH OF TIME FOR AID AND ASSISTANCE; RENEWABILITY; 
RECALL 
 
The Board of Directors will promulgate and regularly update procedures for length of time for aid and 
assistance; renewability; recall through the Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network (IPWMAN) 
Operational Plan. 
 
It is presumed that a Responding Agency’s aid and assistance shall be given for an initial minimum 
period of twelve (12) hours.  Thereafter, assistance shall be extended as the Responding Agency and 
Requesting Agency shall agree.  The twelve (12) hour period shall start when the aid and assistance 
departs from Responding Agency’s location with the intent of going to Requesting Agency’s location.  
The aid and assistance shall end when it returns to Responding Agency’s location with the understanding 
between the Responding Agency and Requesting Agency that provision of aid and assistance is complete.   
 



 5 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

Responding Agency may recall its aid and assistance at any time at its sole discretion.  Responding 
Agency shall make a good faith effort to give the Requesting Agency as much advance notice of the recall 
as is practical under the circumstances. 
 
SECTION IX:  DOCUMENTATION OF COST & REIMBURSEMENT OF COST 
 
A.  PERSONNEL − Responding Agency shall continue to pay its employees according to its then 
prevailing ordinances, rules, regulations, and collective bargaining agreements.  At the conclusion of the 
period of aid and assistance, the Responding Agency shall document all direct and indirect payroll costs 
plus any taxes and employee benefits which are measured as a function of payroll (i.e.; FICA, 
unemployment, retirements, etc.). 
 
B.  RESPONDING AGENCY'S TRAVELING EMPLOYEE NEEDS − Responding Agency shall document 
the basic needs of Responding Agency's traveling employees, such as reasonable lodging and meal 
expenses of Responding Agency's personnel, including without limitation transportation expenses for 
travel to and from the stricken area during the period of aid and assistance. 
 
C.  EQUIPMENT − Responding Agency shall document the use of its equipment during the period of aid 
and assistance including without limitation all repairs to its equipment as determined necessary by its on-
site supervisor(s) to maintain such equipment in safe and operational condition, fuels, miscellaneous 
supplies, and damages directly caused by provision of the aid and assistance. 
 
D.  MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES − Responding Agency shall document all materials and supplies 
furnished by it and used or damaged during the period of aid and assistance. 
 
E.  REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS – Equipment, personnel, materials, supplies and/or services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be at no charge to the Requesting Agency, unless the aid and assistance 
is requested for more than five (5) calendar days.  If aid and assistance is requested from the State of 
Illinois to be activated as a State asset, the Responding Agency will be reimbursed for personnel, 
materials, supplies and equipment from the first day of the response to the event by the State of 
Illinois.  Materials and supplies will be reimbursed at the cost of replacement of the commodity. 
Personnel will be reimbursed at Responding Agency rates and equipment will be reimbursed at an 
appropriate equipment rate based upon either pre-existing locally established rates, the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency Equipment Rate Schedule or that published by the Illinois Department 
of Transportation.  In the event that there is no such appropriate equipment rate as described above, 
reimbursement shall be at the actual cost incurred by the Responding Agency.    
 
 
SECTION X:  RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF RESPONDING AGENCY'S EMPLOYEES 
 
Whenever Responding Agency's employees are rendering aid and assistance pursuant to this Agreement, 
such employees shall retain the same powers, duties, immunities, and privileges they would ordinarily 
possess if performing their duties within the geographical limits of Responding Agency. 
 



 6 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

SECTION XI:  WORKERS' COMPENSATION  
 
The Parties agree that Requesting Agency shall be responsible for payment of workers’ compensation 
benefits owed to Requesting Agency’s employees and that Responding Agency shall be responsible for 
payment of workers’ compensation benefits owed to Responding Agency’s employees.   
 
SECTION XII:  INSURANCE 
 
Each Party shall bear the risk of liability for its agency and its agency’s employees’ acts and omissions 
and shall determine for itself what amount of insurance it should carry, if any.  Each Party understands 
and agrees that any insurance coverage obtained shall in no way limit that Party’s responsibility under 
Section XIII of this Agreement to indemnify and hold the other Parties to this Agreement harmless from 
such liability. 
 
SECTION XIII:  INDEMNIFICATION  
 
Each Party hereto agrees to waive all claims against all other Parties hereto for any loss, damage, 
personal injury or death occurring in consequence of the performance of this Mutual Aid 
Agreement; provided, however, that such claim is not a result of gross negligence or willful 
misconduct by a Party hereto or its personnel.  
 
Each Party requesting aid pursuant to this Agreement hereby expressly agrees to hold harmless, 
indemnify and defend the Party rendering aid and its personnel from any and all claims, 
demands, liability, losses, suits in law or in equity which are made by a third party  provided, 
however, that all employee benefits, wage and disability payments, pensions, worker’s 
compensation claims, damage to or destruction of equipment and clothing, and medical expenses 
of the Party rendering aid or its employees shall be the sole and exclusive responsibility of the 
Party rendering aid; and further provided that such claims made by a third party are not the result 
of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Party rendering aid.  This indemnity 
shall include attorney fees and costs that may arise from providing aid pursuant to this 
Agreement.  
 
 SECTION XIV:  NON-LIABILITY FOR FAILURE TO RENDER AID  
  
The rendering of assistance under the terms of this Agreement shall not be mandatory if local 
conditions of the Responding Agency prohibit response.  It is the responsibility of the Responding 
Agency to immediately notify the Requesting Agency of the Responding Agency's inability to 
respond; however, failure to immediately notify the Requesting Agency of such inability to 
respond shall not constitute evidence of noncompliance with the terms of this section and no 
liability may be assigned.  
 
No liability of any kind or nature shall be attributed to or be assumed, whether expressly or 
implied, by a party hereto, its duly authorized agents and personnel, for failure or refusal to render 
aid.  Nor shall there be any liability of a party for withdrawal of aid once provided pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement.  
 
 
 



 7 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

 
SECTION XV:  NOTICE OF CLAIM OR SUIT 
 
Each Party who becomes aware of a claim or suit that in any way, directly or indirectly, contingently or 
otherwise, affects or might affect other Parties of this Agreement shall provide prompt and timely notice 
to the Parties who may be affected by the suit or claim.  Each Party reserves the right to participate in the 
defense of such claims or suits as necessary to protect its own interests. 
 
SECTION XVI:  AMENDMENTS 
 
Proposed amendments to this Agreement shall be submitted to the Board of Directors.  Amendments shall 
be approved by majority vote of the Board of Directors. 
 
SECTION XVII:  ADDITIONAL PARTIES 
 
Additional agencies may become Parties to this Agreement, provided that such agencies: 
 

(1) Approve and execute this Agreement.   
 
(2) Provide a fully executed copy of this Agreement to the Board of Directors. 
 
(3) Provide the name and title of an authorized representative to the Board of Directors. 
 
(4) Annually provide a list of mutual aid resources to its local accredited/certified Emergency 

Management Agency.  If requested, the agency may need to assist its local 
accredited/certified Emergency Management Coordinator with data entry of its mutual 
aid resources into a web-based format (NIMS Source).   

 
Upon submission of the items enumerated above to the Board of Directors and receipt of 
acknowledgement from the Board of Directors, the submitting agency shall be regarded as a Party to the 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION XVIII:  NOTICES 
 
Notices and requests as provided herein shall be deemed given as of the date the notices are deposited, by 
First Class Mail, addressed to the Board of Directors who will notify each of the Parties’ representatives. 
 
SECTION XIX:  INITIAL TERM OF AGREEMENT; RENEWAL; TERMINATION 
 
The initial term of this Agreement shall be one (1) year from its effective date.  Thereafter, this 
Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one-year terms commencing on the anniversary of the 
effective date of this Agreement.  Any Party may withdraw from this Agreement at any time by giving 
written notification to the Board of Directors.  The notice shall not be effective until ninety (90) days after 
the notice has been served upon the Board of Directors by First Class mail.  A Party’s withdrawal from 
this Agreement shall not affect that Party’s liability or obligation incurred under this Agreement prior to 
the date of withdrawal.  This Agreement shall continue in force and effect as to all other Parties until such 
time as a Party withdraws.  Failure to adopt any amended agreement within ninety (90) days of said 
amended agreement will signify a Party’s withdrawal from the Agreement. 
 
 
 



 8 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

 
SECTION XX:  HEADINGS 
 
The headings of various sections and subsections of this Agreement have been inserted for convenient 
reference only and shall not be construed as modifying, amending, or affecting in any way the express 
terms and provisions of this Agreement or their interpretation. 
 
SECTION XXI:  SEVERABILITY  
 
Should any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or other part of this Agreement be adjudged by any 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the 
remainder of this Agreement.  Each of the Parties declares that it would have entered into this Agreement 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more of this Agreement's clauses, sentences, provisions, 
paragraphs, or other parts have been declared invalid.  Accordingly, it is the intention of the Parties that 
the remaining portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect without regard to the 
clause(s), sentence(s), provision(s), paragraph(s), or other part(s) invalidated. 
 
SECTION XXII:  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Agreement shall be effective on the date of the acknowledgement letter sent by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
SECTION XXIII:  WAIVER 
 
Failure to enforce strictly the terms of this Agreement on one or more occasions shall not be deemed a 
waiver of the right to enforce strictly the terms of this Agreement on any other occasion. 
 
SECTION XXIV:  EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS 
 
This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts with the same effect as if the signatures 
thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. 
 
SECTION XXV:  PRIOR IPWMAN AGREEMENTS 
 
To the extent that provisions of prior IPWMAN Agreements between signatories to this Agreement are 
inconsistent with this Agreement, all prior agreements for mutual aid and assistance between the Parties 
hereto are suspended. 
 
SECTION XXVI: PROHIBITION ON THIRD PARTIES AND ASSIGNMENT OF 
RIGHTS/DUTIES 
 
This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties and no person or entity shall have any rights under 
this Agreement as a third-Party beneficiary.  Assignments of benefits and delegations of duties created by 
this Agreement are prohibited and must be without effect. 
 



 9 of  9 revised 10/26/2021 

NOW, THEREFORE, each of the Parties have caused this IPWMAN Mutual Aid Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized representative who has signed this Agreement as of the date set forth 
below.   
 
Approved and executed this ______ day of _______________. 20__. 
 
For the Agency 
      
 By:________________________________________ 
         
  Attest:______________________________________ 
          
APPROVED (as to form): 

By:        
             
 
On behalf of the Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network 
 
Approved and executed this _______________day of _______________________, 20___. 
 
By: _______________________________________________________ 
                                               Mark Runyon  
                          President of IPWMAN Board of Directors 
 
Attest: ______________________________________________________ 
                                                      Joe Cronin                                               
                                               IPWMAN Secretary 
 
 
 
 

 
Approved by the IPWMAN Interim Board of Directors on September 17, 2008.  Amended by the 
IPWMAN Interim Board of Directors on August 19, 2009.  Amended by the IPWMAN Board of 
Directors on June 16, 2010 






	Agenda
	Bills Paid in Vacation
	May 16th Minutes 
	Committee on Claims
	Hwy Dept Monthly Report
	Transit Monthly Report
	UCCI Report
	University of Illinois Extension Report
	Election Judges
	2025 Holiday Schedule
	Raffle License - Thomson American Legion
	Resolution for Newly Elected/Appointed Officials Salaries
	Chapter 745 Guest Home License Ordinance
	Mid-America Basement Bid
	Bridge Inspection Engineering Agreement with Willet Hofmann and Associates
	Resolution to Appropriate $48,300 for County-Wide Bridge Inspections
	Resolution to Appropriate $1000,00 for Culvert Replacement
	Resolution to Appropriate $450,000 for Culvert replacement
	Ordinance Authorizing Execution of IL Public Works Mutual Aid Network Agreement
	Letter of Support for Addition to Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone

	This Public Works Agreement hereinafter Agreement is entered into by: 


